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Responsibility for the financial statements

The Management Board is responsible for ensuring that financial statements are prepared for each financial period in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as published by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB), which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs and results of ASA Banka d.d. Sarajevo
(the “Bank”) for that period.

After making enquiries, the Management Board expects that the Bank has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, the Management Board continues to adopt the going concern
basis in preparing the financial statements.

In preparing those financial statements, the responsibilities of the Management Board include ensuring that:

= suitable accounting policies are selected and then applied consistently;

= judgements and estimates are reasonable and prudent;
= applicable accounting standards are followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in
the financial statements; and

= the financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Bank will continue in business.

The Management Board is responsible for keeping proper accounting records, which disclose with reasonable accuracy
at any time the financial position of the Bank and must also; ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Accounting and Audit Law in the Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina. The Management Board is also responsible
for safeguarding the assets of the Bank and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
and other irregularities.

Signed on behalffof the Management Board

"
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\Sarir Mpsstafic // Arﬁ)‘;e')é Hagic Davor Tomi¢
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Chairman of the Board Member of the Board

ASA Banka d.d. Sarajevo

Trg medunarodnog prijateljstva 25
71000 Sarajevo

Bosnia and Herzegovina

5 February 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the shareholders of ASA Banka d.d. Sarajevo
Opinion
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of ASA Bank d.d. Sarajevo (the “Bank”), which comprise the
balance sheet as at 31 December 2020, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and cash

flow statement for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Bank as at 31
December 2020 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and the Decision on Credit Risk Management and Determination of
Expected Credit Losses, issued by the Banking Agency of the Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Bank in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements in Bosnia and Herzegovina, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 4 to the financial statements “Significant accounting estimates and key sources of estimation
uncertainty”, which describes the impact of the “COVID-19" corona virus pandemic on the Bank's operations. Our
opinion is not modified on this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

- POWER OF BEING UNDERSTOOD

AUDIT | TAX | CONSULTING

Lead spensors

European
RSM BH d.o.0. is a member of the RSM network and trades as RSM. RSM is the trading name used by the members of the RSM network. Each member of OBusiness
the RSM network is an independent accounting and consulting firm which practices in its own right. The RSM network is not itself a separate legal entity O Awards -

inanv jurisdiction.



Key Audit Matters:
7. Estirmate of impairment for loan losses and receivables from customers

For accounting policies, see note Impairment of financial assets in Section 3 Basis for presentation and summary af
significant accounting poiicies. For more information about key audit matter see Imparment losses on loans and
receivables in Section 4 Critical accounting judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty.

As of 31 December 2020 gross carying amount of loans 1o costumers was BAM 407,779 thousand. The related
impaimmsnt allowance was in amount of BAM 27,709 thousand,

Credit risk represents one of the most impertant typas of financial risks to which the Bank is exposed lo. Datermining
appropriate methods and models by the Management to measure and manage credit risk, with the spacial emphasis
on the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic, is therefors one of the most important areas in safeguerding the Bank's
capital. As part of the credit risk management process, asproprists determination impaimment allowances for expeciad
credit losses on loans and receivables from customers reprasent key consideralions for Bank's Managemant.

In determining the timing and amount of impaiment losses en expected credit losses on loans to customers, the Bank's
managemeant uses statistical models and a certain level of judgment in the following areas:
- Use of historical data in the process of delermining risk parametsrs:
Credit risk exposure assessment;
- Assessment of credit level risk assignment;

- Success of the "Program of Special Mezsures™ adeptad in accordance with the bylaws of the regulator in
response to the Covid-19 pandemic, in order to recover from the negative economic consequences caused by
the pandemic;

- Assessment of the significance of subsequent changes in credit risk in crder to determine a significant increase
of credit risk, which leads to changes in tha levels of risks and the necessary measurement of expected credit
lesses over the lifetime cyele

- Expected future cash flows from operating activities;
- Waluation of collateral and estimation of realization period.

Since delerminalion of appropriate impairment allowances for expectad credit losses on loans and receivables requires
use of complex modsls (generally dependent on IT slements) and significan: judgement from the Management, process
of measuring expected cradit losses may be exposed to management bias. This fact led to the determination of
impairment allowanees for expected credit losses on loans and receivables from customers as key audit matter 0 our
audit of the Bank's financial statements for the year ended 31 Decemhber 2020

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
Performing substantive tests over recogniton and measurement of impaimment allowance for expected credit losses on
sample of loane and receivables allocated to Stage 1 and Stage 2, focusing on:
- Models applied in stage allocation:
- Assumptions used by the Management in the expecled credit loss measurement models;
- Criteria used for determination of significant increase in credit risk;
- Assumptions applied to calculats lifetime prooability of default:
- Methods apglisd to calculats loss given default;
- Methods applied for including dats related 1o future events;
Performing substantive tests over recognition and measurament of impairment allowance for aexpected credit losses on
sample of individually assessed non-performing loans and receivables allocated to Stage 3. which included:
Azsessment of borower's financial position and performance following latest financla reports and available
information;

- Critical azssessmant of judgamants and aseumptions applied in the celculation and measurement of expected
future cash flows from vperations taking 'nto consideration borrower's financial status and perfommancs;




Key Audit Matters (continued):
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter {eontinued)

Reviewing and critically assessing cstimated value of collateral and estimated raalization period, discount rates used in
the estimation of the expected cash flows from operations and/or collateral, re-performing calculation of expected credit
losses by applying our own judgment and assumptions on to calculation and comparing derived result of the impairment
losses per certain sampled loans and receivables with the ones provided by the Bank,

2 Impact of the Covid - 19 pandamic an the Bank 's operalions

The Covid - 1€ diseaze pandemic had negative effects on most economies in the world, and thus on the econamy of
the Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina. Legal entities have lost markets, key customers and suppliers, the liquidity
of many business activities hasz beer significanlly jeopardized, thare have been disruptions in supply and demand for
certsin products and senvices, and a significant decline in the value of cash-generating assets. Given the above, there
is significant uncerlainty in temms of the duration of the pandemic, the ulimate sffects on economic factors such as
interest rates and exchange rate fluctuations, macroeconomic indicators, significantly increased credit risk, availability
of funding sources to maintain I'quidity, availability of government assistance programe and etz In response to the
above. in order to adequately assess the going concem base of business, the management of legal enlitizs are reguired
to periodically make an analysis and assessmant of current circumstancas, revenue and budget projections, cash flow
projections, introduction of new products and services that enable uninterupted business (cyber business), changes in
the fair values of assets, the availability of an educated workforce and other,

The aforementionea facts infuenced sur conclusion that the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on the Bank's oparations
and on the appropriateness of judgments regarding going concer is a key audit matter during our audit of the Bank's
financial staterments for the year ended 31 December 2020,

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
Performing substantive testing on the plans and projections of the Bank's Management Board by reviewing:
- consistency and validity of assumptions used in projecting cash flows and business plans,

- relakility of information sources, ie whether the informstion has bean analyzed from the aspect of sensitivity
test,

- future forecasts regarding market developments,

- how the Bank's managzment azsesses the collection and recovery of assets,

- leng-term solvency and liguidity projsctions, fulfillment of legal and by-law requiremeants,

- results of stress tests,

- checking the formal - legal basis of long - term anangements related fo the availability of funding sources.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Managerent Is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and for such internal control as management determinas iz
necessary to enable the preparation of the financial etatements that sre free from material misslatement, whether due
to traud or errer. In prepering the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank's ability to
continue as geing concem, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concam and using the going coneern
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguicalz the Bank or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so. Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Bank's financial reporting
process.




Auditor's Responsibifities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Cur objective is to obtain reasonable assurance aboeut whethar the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatements, whether due to fraud or error, and fo issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reascnable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an sudit conducted in accordancs with Infemational
Standards on Auditing will always datect a materal misstatemeant whan it exists. Misstatements can arlse from fraud or
emror that are considered material if, individually or aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to inflience the
gconomic decisions of ugers, taken on the basis of those financial statements.

Az part of an audit in accordance with Intermational Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit, We also.

« identify anad assess the risks of material misstataments of the financial staterments, whether due to fraud or
error. design and perform audit procadures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and approprizte to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not cetecting materal misstaternent resuling
from fraud is higher than the one resulting from eror, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intzntional
amissions, misinterpretations or the override of internal controls.

» obiain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
aporopriate in the cireumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectivensss of the
Bank's internal conbiols,

«  evaluale the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and

related disclosures made by the mansgement.

+ conclude on the appropriateness of managemeant' s use of the gaing concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence abtained, whether a material uncertainty evists relzted to events o- conditicns that may
cast significant doubt on the Bank's abilily to continue as a going concern, [f we conclude that a material
uncarainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial staternents or, if such disclosures are inadecuate, to modify our opinion,

«  Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtainad up to the date of our auditar's repart, However,
future events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to contnue as a going concem.

+« evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosuras,
and whether the finarcial statements represent the undedying tansactions and everls in a manner thal
achieves far presentation.

"We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and fiming
of the audit and signficant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in intermnal controls that we identify during
our audt.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our ndependence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that ware of the
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therafore the key audt matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because
ihe adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected Lo outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.



The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Lejla Kaknjo

RSM BH d.o.o.
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Berna Sijoki¢, Direct7 and Certified Auditor ,,RSM BH’ Lejla Kakr{jo, Partner and C/e fied Auditor
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Income statement

Far the year that ended on 31 December 2020

(all amounts are axpressed in thousands on BAM, unloss stafed otherwise)

Interast income
Interes| expensea
Met interest income

Fee and commission income
Fee and commission expense
Met fee and commission income

Other gains
Uther oparating income
Inceme from operating activities

Employee expenses
Deprecigtion expenses

Other administrative expensas
Operating expenses

PROFIT BEFORE IMPAIRMENT LOSSES, PROVISIONS

AND TAXATION

Impairment losses and provisions, net

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Income tax

Loss as a result of decrease in deferrad tax assets

FROFIT AFTER TARATION

Earnings per share - basic and diluted (in BAM)

Mote

&
5

10

11
23
12

12

14

14

15

2020 2018
15,521 16,196
. (4870) (4.727)
10,651 11,468
7.7 7,654
{2,725) (2.681)
5,016 4973
2,481 2927
31 32
18,549 18,680
{7, 242) (7.364)
(2,015) (2 .035)
(5,475) _ (4,905)
o (14732)  _ (14305)
3817 5375
249 474
) 4,065 5,849
» (93)
(13) -
4,063 5,750
6,15 8,73

The accomaanying nates form an integral part of these financial statement.

ASA Banka d.d Sarajevo




Statemenent of comprehensive income
for the year ended on 31 December 2020
{all amounis are exprassed in thousands of BAM, unless stated otherwise)

Note 2020 _ 2018
Net profit - 4,053 5750
Other comprehensive income:
items ihal are or may be reclassified o profit or loss:
Met (losses) / gains from debst investment securities at fair
value through other cumprehensive inzome 20 (320) 178
ltems that will not be reclassifed through an income statemert:
Met gains / losses) from equity instruments at fair value
through othar eemprzhensive income 20 o ¥ _(B)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 3,769 5,920

The accompanying notes form an intagral part of these financial statement.

ASA Banka d.d. Sarajevy . &
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Balance sheet

as at 31 December 2020

(all amounts are eXxpressed in thousands of BAM, unless stated otherwise)
2020 2019
—=a 2019

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Obligatory reserve with Central bank B&H
Loans and receivables at amortized cost

Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets at FVTOC)

Debt instruments at amortized cost
Other assets and receivables, net

Tangible and intangible assets

Deferred tax assets
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Due to banks

Due to Customers
Subordinated debt
Lease liabilities
Other liabilities
Provisions

Total liabilities

EQuITY

Shareholders’ equity

Reserves

Revaluation reserves

Comprehensive income

Accumulated loss

Total equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQuUITY

Sarmir M

Signed on behalf of Bank on 5 February 2021

——

tafi¢

Chairman of the Board

ASA Banka d.q. Sarajevo

— financial assets at fair valye through

Note

16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
14

24
25
26
27
28
29

30

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

144,453 103,658
57,834 47,831
380,070 332,833
1,213 243
37,066 49,609
1,158 1,541
9,327 11,002
9,538 9,122
95 108
640,754 555,947
5,979 5,360
566,478 473,233
. 3,059

2,121 2,749
2,655 2,400
a72 976
578,205 487,777

v ——— 775

65,870 65,870
6,003 6,003
456 702
(9,780) (4,405)
62,549 68,170
640,754 555,947

financial statement.

Davor Tomié
ember of the Boarg







Statement of cash flows
for the year ended on 31 December 2020
(all amounts are expressed in thousands of BAM, unless staled otherwise)

Operating activities
Profit / (loss) before taxation
Adiustments:
Cepreclation
Impairment losses and provisions, net
Cecrease in deferred tax assets, net

Losses [ (gains} on disposal of property and equipment, net

Eftects of tair value adjustmeant on assets at fair value throuah profit and loss
Cividend income recognized in profit and loss

ilnterest income on financial assets availzable for sale recognized in profil and
0SS

Interest income on financial assets at fair value through other comprehaensive
income recognized in profit and loss

Lzase liabililes adjustiment
Zains from salz of financial assets under FYOCI
Reconciliation of impairment of tangible sssets
Changes in assels and Fabilities:
Increase in receivablas fram CBEBIH
Met increase in loans and receivables, before impairment
Met decrease ! (increase) in other assets, before impalrment
Met increase in due to customers
Met increase / {dacraage) / in due to banks
Met increase in other liabilities
Met decrease in provisions
Income tax paid

MET CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Investing activities

Froceeds from financial assets held4o maturity, net
Froceeds fram /! (purchase of) financial assets at FVOCI, net
(Furchase of) ! proceeds from financial assets at FWVTPL
Dividends received

Furchase of tangible and intang ble assets

Froceeds from sale of properly and eguipment

NET CASH GENERATED FROM / (USED IN) INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES

Financial activities
Payment of leaze liabilitis
Cecrease in liabilities for subordinated debt

NET CASH USED IN FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE YEAR START
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE YEAR END

2020 2019
4,068 5,849
2015 2,038
(244) (474)
13 5
559 (728)
. {32)
(1) (3)
{1,158) {1,167)
(113) {151}
44 (63)
- (49)
5 ”
(10,003) (4,908)
(56,246) (27,281)
1,552 (3,188)
83,245 54 781
&10 {2,249)
255 74
- {73

o {83)
34,704 22,257
496 583
13,337 {10,312}
‘960) 41
1 3
(3427} {1,281)
331 1,748
9,778 {9,228)
(628) (Gas)
(3,058) =
(3,687 {985)
40,785 12,044
103,658 81,614
144,453 103,658

The zecompanying rotes form an integral part of these financial statemant.

ASH Banka d.d. Sarajevo
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended on 31 December 2020

(all amounts are expressed in thousands of BAM, unlass stated otherwise)

1. GEMERAL

Investiciono - komercijalna banka d.c. Zenica (the .Bank ) was registered at the Cantonal Gourt in Zenica an 20 August
1888. The Bark was established in 1957 as Komunalna banka, Zenica. The Bank oparates under that name since an
March 1890, when it has ssparated from Privradna banka Serajevo. The Bank holds a license No. 04-3-1370-1/05
issued by the Banking Agancy of the Federation of Bosnia and Herzegavina on 10 February 2006,

Based on the Decision of the Shareholders Assembly of Investiciono-komercijalna banka d.d. Zenica on staus change
of merger with Moja banka d.d. Sarajevo with Investiciono-komerdijaina banka d.d. 7enica, No. 01/5-7491-12/1 B, dated
20 June 2018, and the Decision of the Shareholders Assembly of Moja banka d.d. Sarajevo on status change of merger
of Maja banka d.d. Sarajevo with Investiciono-komercijaina banka d d. Zanica, No. 1-5750-11/6. dated 20 June 20186,
the merger of Moja Banka d.d. Sarajeve with Investiciono-komercijalna banka d.d. Sarajevo was registerad in the
Companies Reqistry at the Municipality Court in Zenica as of 15 Septermber 2016 with the Decision no. 043-0- Reg-16-
000-747

By the Decision of the Municipality Court in Sarajevo, no. 085-0-Reg-16-004022, dated 30 December 2016, the name
and registerad acdress of Investiciono-komearcijalna banka d.d. Zenica were changed into ASA Banka d.d. Sarajevo,
with the headquarters at the addrass Try medunarodneg prijatelistez 25 in Sarajeve.

The Bank's main operations ara as folows:
= accepling and placirg of deposits or other funds with repayment liability;

= granting and receiving of loans:

* granting of guarantees;

+  senices of local and international payments according to regulation:

* forzign exchange transactions and bu ying of precious metale;

*  issuing and managing with payment instrumenis {including cards, travellers and banking cheques);

+  fnancial lease;

«  buy, sale and collection of receivables (factoring, forfeiting, etc.);

* participation, buying and selling of money market instruments an its cwn benefit and on behalf of third parties
*  sgcurities transactions {brokerage-dealers transaction);

= managing od securities portfolio and other valuable items;

* supportto securities markets, agent transactions, suppert to issuss of securities according to regulation;
= investing consultancy services snd custody accounts;

» financial advisory nd consultancy services;

« collecting data services, providing analysis and information about creditworthingss of legal entities and
enfrepreneurs;

» renting of vaulis:
= agency services in insurance transactions according to regulalion except for car liability insurance:

= other, which represent support to bank main activities

Supervisory board and Ma nagement board

Supervisory board
Eldin Hadzisalimavié Fresident
Sead Aganspahic Member
Samir Red2epovic Member
Ibrahim Fazli¢ MNon-executive member
Arif Erkic MNon-execulive member

ASA Banka d.d. Sarajevo 12







Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended on 31 December 2020
(all amounts are expressed in thousands of BAM, unless stated otherwise)

1. GENERAL (CONTINUED)

Supervisory board and Management board {continued)

Management Board

During 2020. 4-year mandate of Chairman of the Board and Roard Members expired. In aceordance with the Law and
bylaws, after the Banking Agency of the Federation of B&H approved new engsgement, the Bark appoint new
Management Board a5 follows:

Samir Mus:afic Chairman of the Board
Davor Tomid Member of the Board
Amela Alagié Mamber of the Board

In this Report, Management Board members remains the same, except for the fact that Mrs. Arnela Alagié, Member off
the Beard, was executive member in periad fram 19" December 2029 to 1% April 2020.

2 ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS
21 Standards and Interpretation effective in the current period

The following standards, amendments o the existing standards and interpretations issued by tha Intetnational
Accounting Standards Board are effective for the cument period:

- Amendments to IFRS 3: ,Eusiness combination’~ Definiion of Business {Annual periords beginning on or after
1 January 2020);

- Amendments fo IFRS 7: Financizl Instruments: Disclosures®, IFRS 9 ,Financial Instruments® and 1AS 29
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measuremert'- Changes regarding replacement issues in the context
of IBOR reform {Annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020);

= Amendmantsto IFRS 18 Leases®: - COVID-19-Ralated Rent Concessions: Amendment providing lessees wilh
an exemption fivm assesging whether a COVID19-related rent concession (a rent concession that reduces
lease payments due on or bafors 30 June 2021) is a lcase modification. {Annual periods beginning on o after
1 June 2020);

Amendments tc |AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements® and IAS 8 _Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Emors” — Changes regarding the definition of materiality (Annual periods beginning
on or after 1 June 2020);

- Amendments to |AS 38 Financial Instruments: Recagnition and Measuremant” - Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform: The amendments to IFRS €, 1AS 39 ard IFRS 7 amend requirements for hedge accounting to support
the provision of useful financial information during the perod of uncertainty caused by the phasing oul of
interest-rate benchmarks such as interbank offered rates (IBORs) on hedge accounting (Annual periods
beginning on or afier 1 January 2020),

2.2 Standards and Interpretations in izsue but not adopted yet

At the date of autherization of these financial staterments the following standards, amendments to existing standards
and interpretations were in issue, but not yet effective;

- IFRS 17 .Insurance contracts” (Annuzl periods baginning on or after 1 January 2023):

= Amendments to IFRS 1 ,First-fime Adoption of Intematicnal Financial Reporting Standards” - Amendments
resulting from annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018—-2020 (Anrual perods beginning on or after 1
January 2022);

ASH Banka d.d. Sarajevo 13




Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended on 31 December 2020
{all amounts are expressed in thousa inds of BAM, uniess stated otherwise)

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

22 Standards and Interpretations in issue but not adopted yet (continued)

- Amendments to IFRS 3 .Business Combinaticns” - Reference fo the Conceptual Framework (Annual pariods
beginning on or after 1 January 2022);

- Amendments to IFRS 4 Irsurance Contracts’ - Extension of the Temparary Exemption from Applying IFRS 9
defers the fixed expiry dale of the following temporary exemptions from applying IFRS 9 to annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 (Anrual periods beginning on or after 1 Jdanuary 2023),

- Amendments to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments® - Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020: The
amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the 10 per cent’ test in asses sing whether
‘o dereccgnise a financial liability (Annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022);

FRS 17 .nsurance contracts” - IFRS 17 creales one accourting model for all insurance contracts in all
jurisdictions that apply IFRS (Annual perods beginning on or after 1 January 2023);

- IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements” - Classification of Liabilities as Current or Noncurrent: Marrow-
scope amendmens to 1AS 1 1o clarify how to classify debt and other liabiliies 25 surrent or non-currant (Annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022);

- IAS 18 [Froperty Plant and Eguipment” - Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use: The
arrendments prohibit an entity from decucting from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any
proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that asset ta the location and condition nacessary for it to
bex capalbsle of operating in th2 manner intended by managemant. Instead, an entity recegnises the procesds
from selling such iterns, and the cost of producing those items, in profit or loss {Annual periods beginning o9
or after 1 January 2022},

- |AS 37 Frovisions. Contingent Liabilities and Continznt® - Onerous Contracte—Cost of Fulfilling & Cantract:
The amendments specify which costs should be included In an entity s assessment whether a contract will be
loss-making (Annual periads beginning en or after 1 January 2022);

IAS 41 Agriculture” - Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020: The amendment removes ‘he
requirement for entitizs to exclude taxation cash flows when measuring the fair valus of a biclogical asset using
& present value technique (Annual perods beginning on or after 1 January 2022).

The Bank has selected not to adopt these standards, amendments and interpreations in advance of thair effective
dates The Bank anticipates that the adoption of these standards, revisions and interpretations will have no material
impact an the financial statemeants of the Bark.

2.21 Decision on credit isk management and determination of expected credit losses

During 2019, Banking Agency of the Federation BiH issued new Deision on credit risk management ard determination
of expected cradit losses, (Official Gazetie of Federation BIH no. 44/19 dated 26 June 2019), whose implemeantation is
obligatory for all banks staring from 1 January 2020, Accordingly, banks were obliged to calculate the effects of first-
time adoption of this decision on 31 December 2018, and recognize effects as of 1 January 2020in the capital accounts
and report them in Cammon Equity Ter 1. The effacts of first-time adoption represent difference between expected
credit lozsses determined under this Decision's provisions and thase determined and accourted for by the bank under
its internal methodology, in the case where expacted credit losses determined in such manner are lower,

In accordance with abovementicned decision, the banks are required to astablish an appropriate process for allocating
exposures to credit risk levels which directly affect the establishment of expected credit losses.
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended on 31 December 2020

(ail amounts are sxpressed in thousands of BAM. unless stated otherwiss)

a BASIS FOR PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Statement of compliance

These financial stalemesnts have been prapared ir accordance with Intemational Financial Raporting Standards (“IFRS™)
as published by the International Accounting Standards Board,

Going concern

Financial stalements are prepared under the going concern basis which assumes that the Bank will be able to realise
the assets and settle the lisbilitiss in the normal course of busingss.

Basis of preparation

The financial slaterments have been preparec on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments
measured at fair value at the and of each reporting period.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for assefs.

Fair value is the price that would be raceived for sale or be paid for the transfer of duties in a regular fransaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly cbservable or estimated us ng
ather valuation techniguss. In estimating the fair value of assets or lianilfies, the Bank takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability which would be taken into account by market participants when determining the
price of the asset cr liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement andfor disdlosure purposes in these
finzncial statements is determined on such basis, except for measurements that have some similarities to fair value,
but are not affair value, such as value in use in IAS 36,

In addition te financial reparting, fair valuz indicalors are classified at levels 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the
evaluation of the fair value can be seen and of the importance of evaluating the fair value in a who'e, as fallows:

s Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (Uncorrected) an active markets for identical assats or liabilities that the Bank
may sccess on the measurement date; fair value indicators are those derived from quoted prices in active
markets

+ Level 2 inputs, other than quoied prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liahility, either
directly or indirectly; and

* Level 3 inputs are rot observable inputs for the asset or liability.

The financia statements are presentad in convertibla marks (BAN), since that is the currency in which the majority of
the Bank's busness events is exprassed. Convertible Mark is officially tied to the eurc (EUR 1 = BAM 1.95583)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported and disclosed amounts of assets and liabiliiies, income and axpEnses. Actual
rezults could differ from those estimates.

The eetimates and underlying assumptions are reviewsd regularly. Revisions lo accounting estimates are recognized
in the period in which tha estimales are changed, and eventually in future periads, if they have an impact on tham.

Informaton on areas with significant uncertainty in the sstimates and critical Judgments in applying accounting policies
that have the most significant effect on the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. are dizclased in Nate
4,

Accounting policies, slated below, are adequately adopted and implemerted “or all pefieds prasented in these financial
statements
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended on 31 December 2020
{all amounts are expressed in thousands of BAM, unless stated otherwise)

3. BASIS FOR PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT AC COUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Interest income and expense

Intarest income / expense is recognized in the income stalement for the period that belongs to, at the applicatble effective
interest rate, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts / payments (induding al fees on
points paid or received that form an Integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and cther premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset / liability, or, where appropriaie, a shorter period. Interest
income is calculated on the gross book value of the financial instrument for Stage 1 and Stage 2, while for Stage 3 the
Bank calculates interest on the net amortised amount of the financial instrument.

For the POCI assats, interest income s calculated us ing the adjusted effective interest rate on the net amorfised amaount,

Calculation of the effactive interest rate includes all paid or received transaction costs, fees and paints, which are an
integral part of the effective interest rate. Transaction costs include all incremental coets incurred directly in connection
with the issuance or acquisition of financial assets or finandial liabilities,

Fee and commission income and expense

Fees znd commissions consist rmainly of faes earned on domestic and forgign payment transacions, and fees for loans
and other credil instuments issued by the Bank. Fees for payment transactions are rzcognized in the period when
services are randered

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax expense is based on taxable income for the year. Taxabls income differs from net incoma as reported in the
income statement bacause it excludes i‘ems of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it
further excludes items that are never taxzsble or deductible. The Banke liability fer current tax is calculated using lax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reparting periad date.

Deferred tax iz the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on diferences between the carying amount of assets
and liabilities n the financial statements and the carresponding tax basis used in the computation of taxable profit, and
is accounted for usirg the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable
temporary differances and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilized

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed af aach reporting period date and reduced to the extert that it
is no lenger probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expectad to apply in the period when the liability is setiled or the asset
realized. Defered tax is charged or credited in the incoma statement. except when it relstes to items charged or credited
girecily to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with ir equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same laxation autharity
and the Bank has the ability and intention to settle on a net basis,
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MNotes to the financial statements
for the year ended on 31 December 2020
(all amounts are expressed in thousands of EAM, unless stated otherwises)

-8 BASIS FOR PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [CONTINUED)
Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of reporting cask flows, cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash, balances with the Central bank
of Bosnia and Herzegovina ("CBBH"), current accounts with cther banks and cash at hand.

Cash and cash equivalents exclude the compulsary minimum reserve with CEBH, as thase funds are not availaole for
the Bank's day to day operations. The compulsory minimum reserve with CBBH iz a required rezerve to be held by all
commercial Banks licensed in Bosnia and Herzegavina.

Financial instruments
initial recogrution and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when an entity hecomes a party fo the contractual provisions of
the instruments, i.e., when funds are transferred to the customers accounts, or when funds from balances due to
customers are transfemrad to the Bank.

The classification of financial instruments at iniiial recognition depends on their conractual terms and the business
model for managing the instruments. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initialy measured at fair value, except
in the case of financial zssets and financial liabilities recorded at FVYPL. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or izsue of financial assate and financial liabilities (other than financial assats and financial labilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair velue of the financial assets or inancial
liabilitics. as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attibutable to the acouisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediatzly in profit or loss.

Financal liabilities, except commitments and cortingencies, are measured at amortised cost or fair valus through profit
and loss.

Financial assets at amordised cost

Bznk meazuras financial assets at amortised costs using the effective interast mathad, if both of the followirg conditions
are met:

a) the financial asset is hald within a8 business model with the ebjective o hold financial azeets in order to collect
contractual cash flows

b} the confractual tarms of the financial assel give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
aof principal ard inferest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

The details of these conditions are outlined below.
Business mode! assessment

The Bank determnines its business modsl at the level that besl reflects how it manages groups of financial assets 1o
achieve its business objective. The Bank's business model is not assessad an managemeant's intenticns for an individual
instrument. Thus, this conditlon Is not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but at a higner level of
aggregated portfolios. However, a single entity may have more than ore business model for managing its financial
instruments.
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended on 31 December 2020

{all amounts are expressed in thousands of BAM, unless staled cthenwise)

3 BASIS FOR PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY QF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (continued)
Business mode! assessment (conlinuad)

Ar entity's business model refers to how an entity manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. That is,
the entity's business model determines whether the cash flows will result from collecting confractual cash flows, selling
financial assets or both.

Consequertly, this assessment is performead on the basis of scenarios that the entity does not reasonably expect to
occur, such as so-called "worst case” or "siress case” scenarios. For example, if an entity expects that it will sell a
particular portfolio of financial assets only in a stress case scenario, that scenario would nat affect the entity’s
assessment of the business model for those assets if the entity reasonably expects that such a scenario will not ocour.

If cagh flows are not realised in a way that iz different from the entity's expectations at the date that the entity assessad
the business model (for example, if the entity sells more or fewer financial assets than it expected when it classified the
assets), that does not give rise to a prior pericd emor in the entity's financial statements nor does it change the
classification of the remaining financial assets held in that business model {j.e. those asseis that the entity recognised
in prior periods and still holds) as long as the entily considered all relevant information that was available at the lme
that it made the business model assessment. Howevear, when ar entity 2ssesses the business model for newly
ofiginated or newly purchased financial assets, it must consider informatior about how cash dows were realised in the
past, along with all other relevant information.

The SPPI les!

As asecond step of its classification process the Bank assesses the contractual terms of financial to identify whether
they maet the SPP| test. For the purpose of this test, definitions of principal and interest are presented below:

a) principal is fair value of the financial asset at intial recognition.

by interes! is consisted of consideration for the time value of maoney, for credit risk associsted with outstanding
armount of principal over a certain period of time and other basic risks and borrowing costs, as well as a profit
margin.

Delt instrumnerils al fair value hrough other cormprehensive incorms (FYTOCGH

I he: Bank applies th2 new category under IFRS 9 of debt instruments measureg at FVTOCI when both of the following

conditionz are mei:

a) the financial assets are held within a business model, which objective is achleved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial azsats.

b) contractual terms of a financial asset arise, on a specific date, casn flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding.

These instruments had previously been classified as financial instruments available for sale.

FVOC| debt instrumeanis are subsequently measured at fair value, Gains and losses arising due fo changes in fair valua
of instrument should be oresented in other comprehensive income until the financial assets are derecognised or their
reclassification in other categories of financial assets,

Interest income ara recognised in profit or loes in the same manner as for financial assets measurad at amorised cost,

Upon inifial recognition, the Cank can make an irevocable alection to present in other comprehensive income
subsequent changes in the fair value of particular investments in equity instrument that is not held for trading and it is
not contingent consideration granted in a business combination within the scope of IFRS| 3.
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3. BASIS FOR PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)
Financial instruments {continued)
Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVYTOC!) {coniinued)

Gains and losses on these equity instruments are never recognized through orofit or loss. Dividencs are recognised in
profit or lose as other operating income when the right of the payment has been established. Equity instruments at
FVOCI are not subject to an impairment assessment.

Finaneial assels af fair value through profit or loss (FWTPL)

Finencial assets should be measurad at fair value through profit and loss Lnless it is measured al amortised cost or at
fair value through other comprehensive income. However, ‘he Bank may make an irrevacable election for certain
investments in equity instruments, that should be measured al fair value through profit and loss, to reflect fair value
adjustments in other comprehensive income.

Impairment of financis! sseets
Recogrifion of expected credit losses

The Bank recognizes provisions for the impairment of expected credit losses of financial assets measured at amortised
cost and fair value through ofher comprehensive income, lease receivables, contractuzal assets or lease chligations and
a financial guarantes contract,

The Bank is reguired to apply impairment reguirements for the recognition and measurement of provisions for financial
assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive incoms. However, impairment provisions should be
recognized in other comprehensive income and may net reduce the carrying amaunt of financial assets in the balance
sheet.

At each reportirg date, the Bank is required to measure impairment provisions for a financial instrument in the amount
equal to the duration of expected loan losses if the credit risk for that financial instrument has increzzsed significantly
from initial recognition.

Lifstime expecled credit losses (LTECL) arz credit losses arising from all possiole unfulfilled obligetions during the
expected life of a financial instrument.

12-ronth expected crecit losses (12m ECL) are a portion of the lifetime expacted credil lusses that represent the
expected credit losses that result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months
after the reporling date.

In accordance with abovementioned decision, the banks are required to establish an appropriate process for allacating
exposUres to credit risk levels which directly affect the establishment of expected credit losses.

In accordance with the schedule of exposures to credit risk levels, the Bank is required to apply the 7ol owing minimum
rates for expected crecit losses:

1. Level 1. ifthe Bank does not have an adequale lime series, andfor quantity cr guality of historical relevant data
and is unable to determine a value of P parameter using its model in an adequate and documentad manner,
the Bank cannot determine expected credit losses for other exposures which are allocated to the credit level
risk 1 less than 1 % of the exposure.

2. Level 2: For exposure allocated to credit risk level 2, the Bank is required to determine and record expected
credit losses in the amount greater than two:

a) 5% exposuras,
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended on 31 December 2020
(all amounts are expressed in thousands of BAM, unless stated otherwise)

3 BASIS FOR PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial Instruments (continued)
b} amount determined ir accordance with internal methodulogy of the Bank.

3. Level 3 The minimum rates of expected credit losses allocated to Level 3 depend on the fact that the ExXposUre
is secured by acceptable collateral or net, and accerdingly the minimum rates are as follows:

a) exposures secured by acceptable collateral:
Ordinal Minimum expecled
number  Cay ol delay credit loss
1, fram 180 days 15%
2 from 181 o 270 days 25%
3 frorm 271 to 385 days 40
4, from 366 to 730 days 60%
5. from 731 o 1480 days EO%
B over 1480 days 100%
b gxposuras nof secured by acceptable collateral:
Crdinal Minimum expected
number  Day of delay _ credi loss
1. from 180 days 15%
2 from 181 to 270 days 45%
a From 271 to 385 days 75%
4, fram 366 to 456 days 85%
' over 465 days 100%

Minimum rates of expected credit losees for trade receivables, factoring and financial leasing receivables, and other
recewvables, are apglied according to the table as fallows:

Ordinal Minimum expected
number  Day ol delay - credit loss

1. Mo delay in materially significant amaount 0.5%

2, to 30 days 2%

3, from 31 to 60 days 5%

4, from 61 to 90 days 10%

8. from 91 to 120 days 15%

A, from 121 to 180 days 50%

7. frem 181 to 365 days T5%

8. over 365 days 100%

Paramelers of credit isk

Credit lnss for exposures on individual basis is determined as positive differences betwsen gross camrying amount of
exposures and the estimated future cash flows (from operating income andior realization of collateral) during expacted
useful life of the financial asset item, discounted at the effective interest rate which is valid at the reporting date. The
Bank may use a number of different scenarios (from operating income andfor realization of collateral) when assessing
certainty of fulure cash flows with a probatility of thair realization.

The Bank determine expected credit loss for exposures on group basis in aceordance with the following general formula:
ECL=PD = LGD* EaD
Probability of default status (PD pararneter)

Tha Bank determined the value of PO parameter on the basis on definad segments of credit exposures or PD of
Fomogeneous group, which are appropriately (in accordancs with its internal methodology) assigned the value of the
PD parameter. The PD parameter for homegsneous group is estimated as the ratio of the number of pacements at
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MNotes to the financial statements
for the year ended on 31 December 2020
{afl amounts are expressed in thousa nds of BAM, unless stated otherwise)

=1 BASIS FOR FRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (continued)

which default status occurred during the observation period (historical data for 3 years) and the tolal number of
placements that were not in default at the beginning of the obsarved pesiod.

Loss given default (LGD parameler)

Loss given default (LGD parameter) represents the banks inlernal estimate of the level of expected luss related to
exposure in the event of default status. LGD parameter is also calculated at the lavel of the relevant hamogenous group,
hased on historical data on collections from collateral or other sources after the occurrence of default status for idertified
homogenous groups for a period of a leasl recent five years. f the Dank does not tave adequate time series, andfor
quantity or quality of histerical relevant data, ard is unable to determine a value of PO parameter using iis modelin an
adequate and documented manner, then the Bank uses fixed values of this parameter based on conservalive estimates,
which cannot be lower than:

a. 45% for exposures sscurad by acceptable collateral,
b. 75% for exposures not securad by acceptable collateral.
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired. The Bank
alsa derecognises the financial asset in the case of iransfers of financial assets that meet the definiion of derecognition:

- The Bank has transferred its contractual rights to receipts cash flows from the financial asset.

- The Bark retains the rights to the cash flows from financial assets, but has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash Nows to one or more recipients,

When the bank transfers the financial assets, itis obliged to assess the extent lo which i: retains the risks and the benefit
of the financizl asset. In this case:

- if Bank has lransferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the assets, it is obliged to derecognize the financial
assets and recognize separately ke assats or liabilities all rights and obligations that are incurrec ar retained by transfer.

- if Bank has retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the assets, it is obligad to continue to recognize the
financial assets.

. I¥ Bank has naither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and the benefits of the financial assets, it is
obliged to determine whether it has retaned control over inanclal assets. In this case:

(i) if Banx has not retained the control, it is obliged to derecognize the financial assets and reccgnize separately ke
assets or liabilities all ights and obligations that are incurred or retained by transfer.

(il) if the Company retained the control, it is ooliged to continue to recognize the financial assets in the amount of its
part in financial assets.

1] inancial liabilites and equity insiruments issued by the Bank
Classificalion as debf or equily

Deb* and equity instruments arz classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of
lhe contractual arrangament.
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for the year ended on 31 December 2020

(all amounts are expressed in thousands of BAM, unless stated otherwise) )
3 BASIS FOR PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments [continued)
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences & residual interesl in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Bank are recorded at the amount of received funds, less then direct issue
cosls,

Financial guarantee contract liabilities

Financial gusranize contract liahilites initially are measured at their fair va'ues and are subsequently measured at the

higher of:

¢ the amount of the cbligation undar the contract, as determined in accordance with IAS 37: “Provisicns, Contingant
Liabilities and Contingent Assets™; or

«  the amount initiglly recognized less, where appropriale, cumulative amaortization recognized in accordance with
the revenue recognition policies set aut at above,

Financial liahilitias
Financial liabililies are classified as cither inancial lisbilities “at fair value through profit or loss®, or “other financial
lizhilities",

Other financial iahililies

Other financial liabilities, including liabilities to banks, customers and subordinated debt, are initially recognized al fair
value less transaction costs.

Other financial liabilities ars subsequently measurad at amartised cost using the effective interest method. The effactive
interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability ard of allocating inlerast expense
ovar the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the finandial liability, ar where appropriate, a shorter period.

Oerecognition of fnancial abilifes
The Bank derscognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Bank's obligations are discharged, canceled or
they expire,

Leases

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract. The Group recognises a
right-of-use assst and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease arrangements in which it is the lesses,
expect for short-tenm leases and leases of low value assets. For these leases, the Group recognises the lease payments
as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the leass unless another systematic bass is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic benetits from the leased assets are consumed,

The lzase liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid af the commencemeant
dale, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined, the lesses uses its
incremental borrowing rate.
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3. BASIS FOR PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING FOLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leases (continued)

At the commencement dats, the lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the
following paymerts for the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term that are not paid at the commencement
date:

(2) fixed paymants, lass any lease incentives recaivable:

(b) wariable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

{c) amounts expacted to be payable by tha lessee under residual value guarantees;
(d) the exercise price of a purchase option if the lesses s reasonably certain to exercise that option and

(8} payments of penzlties for terminating the lease, f the lease term reflacts the |essee exercising an option to
terminate the lease,

The Bank adjusts the value of the lease l'ability determined by remeasurement and recognises it as an adjustment o
the rignt-use of asset using the effective interest methed. The cost of the right-of use asset shall comprise the amount
of the initial measurement of the lease liasility, any lease payments made at or before the commencament date, less
any lease incenfives recaived, any inifial direct costs incumed oy the lessee. Asset with the right-ol-use is subseqguently
measure al cost less any accumulated depreciation and any sccumulated impairment Insses

Property and equipment

Properly and equipment are initially stated at procursment cost less impairment losses and accumulated impairment
osses. Procurement cost includes the purchase price and directly essocialed cost of bringing the asset 10 a working
concition tor its intended use. The costs of ongaing maintenance ard repairs, replacement and invesimant maintenance
of a smaller scale are recognized as an expense when incurred,

Assets undar construction, built for the purpose of providing services or for administraiive purposes, are stated at cost
less any impairment loss. The cost of procurement includes professional fees, and, for qualifying assats, borrowing
cOosts capitalized in accordance with the Bank's accounting policy. Such assets are reclassified to appropriate categories
of property and equipment after being complated and ready for intended usea.

Deprediation is charged from the momenl the asset is ready for its intended use. Depreciation is calculated on a straight-
line basis over the estimated useful life of the applicable assets. Sstimated useful lives were &s follows:;

2020 2019
Buildings 1.5% 1.5%
Fumitures and vehicles 1 - 15% 10% - 15%
Computers and other equipment 10% - 20% 10% - 20%

The gain and logs arising on the dispesal or retirement of an zsset is recognized in the statement of profit and loss in
the period they ocour,
Impairment

At each reporting period date, the Bank reviews the carying amounts of its property and equisment to determine
whether there is any indication ‘hat thos=s assets have sufered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amourt of the assei is estimaled in order to determine the extent of ‘ha impairment loss (if any).
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3. BASIS FOR PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING FOLICIES (CONTINUED)
Impairment {continued)

Recoverablo amount is the greater of the nel selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value ueing a pre-fax discount rate that reflecis current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset

If the recoverable amount of an asseat is estimated to be less then it's carrying amount. the carryirg amount of the asset
is reducad to its recoverakble amount, Impaiment losses are recognised as an expense immediately, unless the relevant
assetis land or building other than investment property carfied at a ravalued amount, in which case the impairment loss
is treated as a revaluation decreasa.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the ca mying amount of the azset is increased to the revised astimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the incressed camrying amaunt does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment Inss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Reversal of impairment
loss is recegnised as income immediataly, unless the re'evant asset is caTied at revalued amourt, in which case the
reversal of the impairment loss is treated as revaluation increase,

Intangible assets

Iniang ble assets ars measured initially at purchase cost and are amoriised on 2 straight-line basis aver their estimated
useful lives using rate of 14.3% annually.

Assets classified as held for sale

Non-current assets ars classifizd as held for sale f it's carrying amount will be largely compensated by selling rather
than by constant use. This requirement is mat only if the sale is highly prebable and the assets available for sale in the
current state. Management must be decisive in sales, which should be determined for recognition as a complete sale
within one year from the date of classificaton. Assets classified as held for sals are measured at a lower of the carmying
amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Employee benefits

On behalf of ts employess, the Bank pays personal Inceme tax and cantributions for pension, disability. health and
unamployment insurarce, on and from salaries, which are calculated as per the set legal rates during the course of the
¥year on the gioss salary. The Bank pays the tax and contribulions in the favour of the institutions of the Faderation of
Bosnia and Herzegovina (on federal and cantonal levels),

In addition, meal allowences, tansport allowances and vacation bonuses ase paid in accordance with the locsl
legislation. These expenses are racognized in the income statement in the period in which the salary expense is
incurred.

Forelgn currency translation

Transactions in currencies other than Boghia ard Herzegovina BAM are initially recorded at the rates of exchange
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the rates prevailing on the
reporting peried date. Mon-maonetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined, Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retransisted, Profits and losses arising on trarslation
are included in the income statament for the year.
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3. BASIS FOR PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Foreign currency translation (continued)

The Bank values its assets anc liabilifies by midcle rate of CBBH valid at the dale of balance sheet, which approximates
markel rates The principal rates of excharge set forth by CBBR and used in the preparation of the Bank's balance
sheet at the reporting dates were as follows;

31 December 2020 1 EUR =1, 85583 KM 1 USD = 1,50266E KM 1 CHF = 1,801445 KM
31 December 2019 1 EUR = 1,95583 KM 1USD =1,747994 KM 1 CHF =1,789126 KM
Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Bank has a present obligation (legal or consiructive) as a result of a past event, it
is probable thal the Bank will bz required to settlz the cbligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the abligation.

The amourt recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
atthe reporting period date, taking into account the risks and uncerainties surrounding the cbligation. \Wherzs a provision
is measured using ihe cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation. it's carrying amount is the present value of
thosa cash flows. Provisions are released only for such expenditure in respect of which provisicns sre recognized at
Inception. If the outflow of economic benefits to settle the obligations is no longer probable, the provision is raversed.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition censtruction or sroduction of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial peried of time to get ready for their intendec use or sale, are included in the
cost of procurement of assets, until the assets are substantially ready for its inlended use or sale.

All alher borrowing costs are charged to the staterrent of income in the period in which they are incurred,
Equity and reserves

Share capital

Share capital includes paid ordinary and preference shares and is exprassed in KM at nominal valus.
Revaluafion reserve for investments

Revaluation reserve for investments comprises changes in fair value of financial asse's through other comprenensive
income.

Earnings per share
Tha Bank puklishes basic and diluted eamings per share (EPS) data.

loss attibutakle to ordinary sharehclders of the Bank by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the penod.

During 2020 and 2019 there were no dilution effects.
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4, CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Ban«'s accaunting policies, which are described in Note 3, the Management is required to make
Judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that ars net readily apparent
from ather sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other faciors
that are considerad to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estmates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewad on an on-going tasis. Revigions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both curent and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting period date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilitizs within the next financial yvear,

Influence of the COWD-18 pandemic

The Bank's management has made estimates releted to consideration of the impact of Coronavirus pandemic (SOVID-
19) on current and future ooeration based on available information. This consideration relates to the nature of the
procucts and services offered, customers, the lending 2nd deposit collection procass, employees and the geographical
regions in which the Bank operates. Except as descrined in certain notes to the financial staternznts, there arc currently
no indicators that thers is a material impact on the finandal statements or any material uncertainties regarding evenis
or condifions that may adversely affect the Bank et fhe reporting date or subsequently as a result of the CoronavirLs
pandemiz (COVID-19).

On March 20, 2020 and August 24, 2020, the Banking Agency of tha Sederation of Basnia and Herzegovina adopted
bylaws, iz measures enabling the granting of benefits to bank dients affected by the negative effects of the Covid-19
nandemic, as well as crealing a framawork for preservation stability of the financial sector in the Federation of Bosnia
and Herzegovina. The decision on temporary measures applied by banks for recovery from the negative economic
consequences caused by the viral disease "COVID-19", adoptad on August 24, 2020, provides for the following special
measures:

- moratorium, as a cesssation in repayment of loan obligations for a maximum of 8 monihs,

- introduction of a "grace” period of 12 months for repayment of the prinipal of loan obligations in the case of
lozns that are repaic in annuity,

- extension of the maturity for repayment of annuity loans,

- extension of the maturity of single-maturity lsans, including revolving loans and overdrafts on bank transaction
accounts for a maximum period of 12 months, whereby the bank's client could use the part of the exposure that
was unused on the day of modification, during that period,

- approving an additional amount of exposure for the purpose of nvercoming the client's current liquidity difficulties,

- adjusting the repayment schedule in proportion to the reduction in income or some other relevant parametear
determined by the bank and

- other measures taken by the bank in orger to facilitats the servicing of the client's 'oan obligaticns and the
establishment of sustainable business of the client.

Banks are left with the possibility to opt for other forms of customer suppart, ie other modalities of facilities, with the
cbligation to carry out all necessary activities in order to sdequately manage credit risk. During the contracting of special
measuras, the bank cannat charge additional fees related to the modification of the exposure, ic during the moratorium
no default interest |s calculsted on overdue receivables,
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4, CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UMCERTAINTY
({CONTINUED)

Influence of the COVID-18 pandemic (continued)

Also, the aforementioned Decision defines the segment of clients for whom special measures are available, level of
credit risk 1 2nd 2, and leval of credit rigk 3 if the eliert is in the recovery periad in accordance with Article 22, paragraph
{3). Item bj of the Decision on cradit nsk management and where there is regular repayment in the last 3 months until
the date of application. Clients could submit requests for the application of the sforementioned measures to banks until
December 31, 202C.

During 2020, the Bank's Management Board adopted internal act "Program of Temporary Measures for Recovery from
Megative Economic Consequences Causec by the COVID-19 Virug™, which served as the basis for the activities that
followed until December 31, 2020.

As on 31 December 2020, the Bank, in its loan portfolio, had 26 credit accounts of natural persons covered by special
measures, and whosa gross exposure balance wag BAM 2,014 thousand, i.e., nat axposure balance of BAM 1,566
thousand. In the segment of the portfolio related to legal entities, the number of parties covered by special measures
was 83, with a gross exposure balance of BAM 58,818 thousand, or a net exposure balance of BAM 52 851 thousand.

Usefu! lives of property and equiprerl

As descrbed in Mote 3 above, the Bank reviews the estimated useful lives of property and equipment at the end of each
annual reporting perod.

Impairment losses o loans and receivables

Ag described in Note 3 above, at each reporting period date, the Bank assessed ind cators for impairment of loans and
receivables and their impact on the estimated fulure cash flows from the loans and receivables

Imipairm e sses onl loans and il and provisions for off eXposUe

The Bank monitors the creditworlhiness of its customers on an angeing basis. The need for impairment of the Bank's
on-and off-balance credit risk exposures is assessed on a monthly basis. Impairment losses are made malrly against
the carrying value of loans to comporate and retail customars and as provisions for liabilities and charges arising from
oft-balance-sheel risk exposure to customers, mainly ir the form of unusad loan facilites and guaraniees. Impaimment
losses are also considered for credit risk expesures to banks and for other assets not carried at fair value, where the
primary risk of impairment is not credit risk.

With regard to the financial assets camed at amortised cost, the Bank first assesses whather objective eviderce of
impairment exists individually for zssets that are indlvidually significant and collectively for assets that are not individually
sighificant.

In assessing collective impairment, the following guidslines are veed;

= fulure cash flows of a homogenecus segment/product group are estimated based or historical losses for assets
with similar credit risk characteristics;

« criteria for assessing a significant increase in credit risk and measuremeant of losses or LTECL basis;

* informaztion on historical loss rates is applied consistently to defined homogeneous segments/groups;

* historical losses are adjusted in line with current data which can be used consistently with the current eonditions:

= methodology and assumptions used to estimate future cash flows are regularly revised, and updated as

NacessaAry
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4, CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
({CONTINUED)

Az sxplaingd further below, the Bank calculates provisions under FBA rules, as well as estmating impairment

allowances under IFRS.

On December 23, 2020, the Supervisory Board of the Bank passed a Decision on the adoption of the Validation of the
intemal impairment methodology according to IFRS,

Fair value of financial instruments

As described in Note 34, the Management use their judgment in selecting an appropriate valuation tachnigue for
financial instruments not quoted in an active market. Valuation technigues commonly used by market practitioners are
applied. Financial insirumerts are valued using & discounted cash flow analysis based on assumplions supported,
where possible, by observable market prices or rates. The estimation of fair value of unlisted shares includes soma
assurnptions not suoported by observable market prizes or rates.

5. INTEREST INCOME

2020 2018
Interest on corporate loans 0813 10,852
Interest on retail loans 4,627 3,946
Financial assefs at fair value through OC1 (Noe 20) 1,168 1,157
Debt instruments at amortised cost (Note 21) 113 151
Factoring income 1 8
Interest income from banks = a2
Other intzrest income . g
15,621 16,195
6. INTEREST EXPEMESES
2020 2018
Inlerest on retail deposits 2,500 2,587
'nferast on corporate depaosits 1.522 1,657
Interast on subordinated debt 130 188
Other interest expenses 418 315
4,870 4727
7. FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME
2020 2019
Fees from services renderad 4 161 4 165
Payment operations fees 3,109 3,049
Fees on issued guarantees . 471 440
7,741 7,654
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8. FEE AND COMMISSION EXPENSE

Fayment fransactions fees
Other fees to banks

g, OTHER GAINS

Foreign exchangs differences, net
Collected written-off receivables

Income from rented premises or equipment
Gains on salz of proparty, equipment and assets available for sale (Note 22
and 23)

Fair value adjustment — financial assets at FVPL (Note 189)
Sale of bonds - financial assets at FVTOCI
Income from dividends

10. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Inzams from suspended interest
Qthear incoma

11. PEREONNEL EXPENSES

Met salaries
Tax and confributions
Other

2020. 2019,
2,127 2,108
598 573
2,725 2,681
2020 2019
804 1,262
814 243
472 406
300 728
10 az
- 63
1 3
2,491 2,927
2020 2019
58 190
a2z 122
391 312
2020 2019
4,001 4,001
2,479 2,472
872 801
7.242 7,364

The average number of personrel employed by the Bank on 31 December 2020 and 2019 was 212 and 219 raspactfully.
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12, OTHER ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

2020 2018
Equipment and building mainfenance 1,453 1,257
Services 1,320 1,226
Energy 37 400
Marketing and representation 321 228
lelzcommunication servicas 318 288
Tax expenses 260 271
Donations 253 169
Insuranca 247 179
Material expenses 208 181
Membership fecs 166 180
Subsequently identified other expenses 119 53
Fant 117 126
Litilities 56 BB
Supervisory Board fees 45 45
Services contracts 26 iy
Panallies 7 12
Card busiress fess 4 e
Other 183 195

5,475 4905

During 2020, under other administrative expenses, Bank stated expensas in emount of KM 438 thousand which are
related to merger process with Vakulska bank d.d. Those expanses relates fo rendered services in amount of KM 279
theusand and maintenance of busiress premises and equipment in amount of KM 1568 thousand.

13.  IMPAIRMENT LOSSES AND PROVISIONS

Note 2020 2018
Cash and cash equivalents 16 5 (4)
Loans to customers 18 {35) (1,071)
Provisions for litigations 29 O 77
Financial assets at FVOCI 20 i) 162
Provisions for commitments and contingencies 29 {198) (7
Provisions for employes benefits 24 g 358
Financia' assets at AC 21 {10} {4)
Other assels 22 (88 169
[249) {474)
14. INCOME TAX
Total income tax recognised in income statement may be presented as follows:
2020 2018
Current income tax - 83
Total tax - 83
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14.  INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

Adjustmen: between income tax pressnted in tax balance and accounting income t2x is presented as follows:

2020 2018
Profit/ {lose) before income tax 4,066 5,849
Income tax expense, at the statufory rate of 10% 407 585
Effects of non-deductible expenses 71 155
Effects of non-taxable Income (199) {128}
Capital {losses) / gains (E48) 39
Decrease in tax liability based on accumulated losses - (558)
Currentincome tax ) . 92
Effective Income tax rate - 1,59%

Responsible bodies of the Bank belisve that tax losses of Maja Banka d.d. Sarajevo can oe carried forward o the
successor bank through the merger process. In accordance with the Corporate Income Tax Act, rights and oblgations

of marged, acquired or divided taxpayers are assumed by legal successors in tax-legal ralation.

Provisions of the Rulebook or implementation of Corporate Incorme Tax Acl slipulate that a taxpayer that merges
another taxpayer cannot use tax loss of the merged entity for decrease of its future tax base. Responsible badies of the
Bank belleve that in this case, the provisions of the Law, as the supreme legal act, are applicable. On 4 April 2019,
3ank received Report fom the Tax Authorities, denying usage of losses of Moja banka d.d., and, consaguently,
stipulates additional tax obligation in amount ¢f 288 thousand KM (principal and penalty). On 24 April 2019, the Bank
has filed @ complaint o the Tax Authorities, arguing above mertioned facts. Until the day of our audit, thers were no

significant changes in this segment.

Changes in deferrec tax asset can be presented as follows:

2020 2019
Balance as on 1 January 108 113
Used deferred tax assets {13) ()
Adjustment 1
Balance as on 31 December 85 108

15. PROFIT PER SHARE

2020 2019
et result {in BAM thousands) 4,053 8,750
Weighted average number of shares for the purpose of basic earnings per
share 658 605 658,605
Basic earnings per share (in BAM) 6,15 8,73
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16. CABH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

31 December 2020

_ Stage1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Current account in domestic currency with the Central
Bank of BH 88,326 - - 88,328
Current accounts with other banks 17,020 - - 17,020
Cash in hand in domestic currency 31,324 - - 31,324
Cash in hand in foreign curmency 7,783 - - 7.783
144,453 - = 144,453

31 December 2019

__ Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Current account in domestic currancy with the Central
Bank nf BH 39 845 - - 35,849
Current accounts with other banks 20,791 - - 20,791
Cash in hand in domestic currancy 35,041 - - 35,041
Cash in hand in foreign currency 7977 - . TETT
103,658 - - 103.658

Changes in gross canying amount are presentad below:
__Stage 1 Stage2 Stage3  Total

Gross carrying amount as at 1 January 2020 103,675 - - 103,675
Acquirad financial asscts 40,959 - = 4[) 4559
Transfer to Stage 1 - - 2

Transfar to Stage 2 . - g -
Transfer to Stage 3 - i . F
As on 31 Decembar 2020 144,634 - - 144,634

_ Stagei Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Gross carrying amount as at 1 January 2019 81,635 - - 81.635
Acquired financial asseis 12,040 - - 12.040
Derecognition or proceeds from collection (excluding writa off) = . = .
Transier to Slage 1 - - - -
Transfer tc Stage 2 - - . -
Transfer to Stage 3 - - - -
As on 31 December 2019 103,675 - - 103,675
Changss in impairments are presented below

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Impairments as on T January 2020 17 " . 17
Effect of ths first-ime acoption FBA Decigion 159 - - 1689
Impalrment (Note 13) 8 - - o
Transfer to Stage 1 - - . -
Transfer lo Slage 2 - - - -
Transfer to Slage 3 - - )
As on 31 December 2020 181 - - 181
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16. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED)

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Impairments as on 1 January 2018 21 - - 21
Impairment (Note 13) () - - {4)
Transfer to Stage 1 . - -
Transfer to Stage 2 . . - a
Transfer to Stage 3 = . . .
As on 31 December 2019 17 - - 17

17. OBLIGATORY RESERVE WITH THE CENTRAL BANK OF BOSNIA AND HERZEGOVINA

31 December 31 December
2020 2018
Obligatory reserve with CBEH 57,834 47 831
57,834 47,831

As prescribed in this Decision, base for the caleulation of mandatory reserve is deposits and loaned funds, regardless
of the currency, Cecision prescribes unified rate of 10% that CBBiH applies in calculation of the cbligatory reserve.

The Decision alan detarmine that no fee will be caleulated for the obligatory resarve amount. For the amount of assets
over the obligatory reserve, CBBH calculates fee at the rate apolied by the European Central Bank (ECB) on commercial

bznk's deposits,

18. LOANS AND RECEIVABLES

31 December 31 December
2020 2018
Short- term loans:
{including current portion of long-term loans)
Corporate 123,308 128,088
Fetail B 245 10,574
o 131,555 139,662
Long- term loans:
{including current pertion of long-term loans)
Corporate 173,160 167,088
Fetzil 103,064 65,245
276,224 235 337
Total loans befora alflowance for impalrment 407,779 374,999
Less: Allowance for impairment losses based on individual assessment (18,735 (34,130)
Less: Allowance for impairment losses based on collective assezsment (8,874) {8,036}
380,070 332,833
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18. LOANS AND RECEIVAELES (CONTINUED)

31 December 2020

Loans fo individuals
FHousing loan
Other loans to individusls

Loans to corporate
Revolving loans
Irvestment loans
Other loans to sorporate

Less: Impaiment

31 December 2019

Loans fo individuals
Housing loans
Other loans to individuals

Loans to corporate
Revelving loans
Investment loans
Other loans to corporate

Less: Impairmenl

Changes in gross czrrying amourt for loans are shown below:

Gross carrying amount as at 1 January 2020

Acquirad financial assets

Derecognition or proceeds from collection {exeluding writz off)

Increase in exposure under existing contracts

Transfzrto Stage 1
Transfer to Stage 2
I'ransfer o Stage 3
Wirite off

Eelow is the overview of loans given to customers by segment and level of credit risk as at December 31 . 2020:
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Collective Collective Individually Collective
assessment  assessment assessed  assessment Total
20,745 253 273 47 21,318
84,442 814 1,353 3,386 89,905
105,187 1,067 1,626 3,433 111,313
84 012 3,004 2377 90,383
24 449 3,188 2115 29,753
147,486 5,808 23.026 176,330
255,957 12,991 27,518 - 296,466
{4,084 (1551 {18,735) i3,339) (27,708)
357,080 12,507 10,409 84 380,070
13,778 58 483 81 14,410
56,211 642 3,819 3941 54,413
55,980 10 4,102 4,022 78823
75,188 2378 4,720 - 82284
21427 880 3,795 - 25,882
142,755 12,233 33.012 - 188,000
238, 368 15271 41,537 - 286,178
(3,799 (443) (34.129) (3.795) [42.168)
305,558 15,538 11,510 227 332,833
Stage 1 Stage 2  Stage 3 Total
309,357 15,887 49,667 374,939
188,724 3M7 29 202,170
(141,887) (4232)  (2,166)  (148,088)
1.888 18 24 2181
805 (345) (50) -
(7.596) 7,615 (16) .
{537) (7,808) 8,533 =
- - (23488)  (23466)
361,144 14,059 32,576 407,779

At 37 December 2020
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18.  LOANS AND RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)

Gross carrying amount as at 1 January 2079
Acquired financial assats
Derecognition or proceeds from collection (excluding write off)

Increase in exposure under existing contracts
Transfer to Stage 1

Transfer to Stage 2

Transfer io Stage 3

Wite off

At 31 December 2018

Changes in Impairment for loans receivables are shown below:

Impairments as at 1 January 2020

Effect of the first-time adoption FBA Degision
Impairment [Note 13)

Transfer to Stage 1

Transfer to Stage 2

Transfer to Stage 3

Wirite oiff

At 31 December 2020

Impairments as at { January 2018
Impairment (Mote 13)

Transfer to Stage 1

Transfer to Stage 2

Transfer to Stage 3

Write off

At 37 December 2019

Weightea average interest rate can be presentad as follows:

Corporate
Retail

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
281,637 14,428 53,271 349,336
184,357 4134 633 189,124

(161,750) {4,418 6,182) (162,350)

803 2 12 817
o7e {780) {1886) -
(3,383) 3,413 (30) -
(2,963 (798) 3,781 -
- - (1,628) 11.628)
309,357 15,987 49,661 374,995
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
3,793 443 37,924 42,166
1,535 1,220 6.289 9,044
165 G2 {262) (35)
i (7 - -
{1,174) 1,175 (1) .
248) (1,343) 1,582 -
. - (23468) {23,466)
4,083 1,550 22,076 27,709
Stage 1 Stage 2  Stage 3 Total
4,745 708 39,412 44,865
i@ 17 {4.079) (1,071)
16 {15 (1) -
{110) 111 {1 -
(843) {378) 1,221 -
- - (1628)  (1628)
3,788 44.3 37,924 42 166
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
3.52% §22%
B.23% 5.18%

An overvizw of the average parameters useq to calculate imaairments can be shown as fallows:

31 December 2020 _ Average PD Average CR Average LGD
Corporate 0.0187 - 064
Retail 0,006 - 074
31 December 2019

Corporate 0,030 0,050 0,705
Retail 0,008 0,056 0,934
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18. LOANS AND RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Analysis of Ioans before allowance for impairment losses by industry;

31 December 31 December

2020 2018

Trade 127,839 131,860
Citizens 111,313 T8 TE8
Agriculture, torestry, mining and industry 84 524 68,080
Services, finance, sport and tourism 39,750 £1,264
Construction industry 25,608 23,066
Transport and communicstions 10,567 7,654
Governmental nstitutions, NGO's and othar 8.177 14,187
407,778 374,989

Reprograms and restructuring

Restructuring measures include a “concession” to the debtor as a result of the deterioration in the economie and financial
position of the clien: and the impnossibility of repaying the debt unde- the initially agreed terms. The "concession” may
be change in terms of the orginal contract (annex) or a new contract {refinancing). Restructuring of the liabilities aims
to enable the client to repay the obligations according to his real possibilitics, with the provision of more efiicient and
secure collaction of the Bank's receivables. According to this, restructuring of the liabilities represents a change in the
terms and conditions agreed in the moment of \oan approving (e.g., exlension of repayment deadlines, reduction of
interast rates. stc.). Decision on restructuring of the liabiliies maks authorzed body of the Bank Restructured
Exposures can be icentified both in the non-performing and performing parts of the portfolio.

Number of reprogramed Gross credit

31 December 2020 I0ans exposure Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

Corporate 28 5275 521 - 4754

Retail 14 394 16 - 378
42 5,669 537 - 5132

31 December 2019

Corporate 39 12,136 B3 - 11,443

Retail 15 B70 22 - 648
54 12,806 715 - 12,081

Loans under special measures

At 31 Dacemoer 2020, the Bank had in its loan portfolio 26 credit accounts of natural persons covered by special
measures, and whose balance sheet gross exposure was KM 2,014 thousand, i.e., balance zhest net exposure of KM
1,668 thousand. In the segment of the porifolic related to legal entities, the number of parties covered by special
measures was 85, with a balance sheet gross exposure of KM 58 819 thousand, or a balance sheet net exposure of
KM £2,851 thouzand.

Syndicated loans

During 2020, the Bank approved 8 syndicated loans (2019: 8 syndicated loans) together with other banks. On this basis,
the participation of cther barks as of December 31, 2020 was in the amount of KM 3,232 thousand. (2018: from KM
4 527 thousand ), The Bank bears risks only for its portion of syndicated loans.

ASA Bankad.d Saraje:m . a6
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Motes to the financial statements
for the year ended on 31 December 2020

(all amounts are expressed in thousands of BAM, unless stated otherwiss)
18.  FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT AND LOSS

31 December 31 December
2020 2019
Investments in funds;
Investmant fund "Raifeizen Cash” Sarajevo a5 -
Shares:
Shares of private companies 155 170
Shares of sublic companios 40 48
Shares of banks 21 21
Shares of non-banking financial institutons 2 4
1,213 243
Movements in fair value of assels Uiough profit and loss were as follows:
-~ 2020 o 2019
Balance at the beginning of the year 243 2,71
New assets (purchased) Oos -
Reclagsification of assets by FVOED - (2,468}
(zains from fair value adjustments (Note €) 10 32
Charged during the year {35) 41)
Balance at the end of the year 1,213 243

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

31 December 31 December
2020 2019
Debt securities:
Ministry of Finance RS 28,212 19,597
Ministry of Finance FBiH 9,486 27,776
JP Autoceste FBiH d.o.c. Mostar - 1,003
Accrued interest - 481 ] 382
Sub-total 36179 o 48758
Equity instrumants:
Barmcard d.d. Sarajevo 219 219
Sarajeve Stock exchange d.d. Sarajeve 103 103
Securilies” Register of FBIH d.d. 15 15
‘Vakufska banka d.d. Sarajevo 17 21
Bank Azsociation 8 )
Sub-total B 363 367
Investimient in funds:
Open invesiment fund “Lilium Global” Sarajeve 524 484
37,066 49,609

ASA Banka d.d. Sarajevo ' ' a7
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended on 31 December 2020

(all amounis are expressed in thousands of BAM, unless stated otherwise) )
20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (CONTINUED)}

Changes in gross carrying amount are presented below:

Gross carrying amount as at 1 January 2020
Mew finarcial assets (purchasad)

Derecognition or proceeds from collection (excluding write off)
Interest (Mote 5)
Unrealised loss from fair value adjustment, net

At 31 December 2020

Gross carrying amount as at 7 January 2015

Mew financial assets (purchased)

Transfer from finarcial assets at FWTPL

Derecognition or preceeds frem collection (excluding write off)
Interest (Note 5)

Unrealised gain from fair value adjustment, net

At 31 December 2019
21. DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT AMORTISED COST

Bonds:

Ministry of Finance of FBiH
Lass: Impairment, nat

Chranges in debt instruments at amortised cost are presented below:

Balance at beginning of the year
Interest (Mole 5)
Decrease, net

Balance at end of the year

Changes in gross camying amount are presented below:;

Gross carrying amount as at 1 January 2020
Derecognition or proceeds from collection (excluding write off)
Interest (Mate §)

At 37 December 2020

Stage1  Stage 2 Stage3  Total
49,609 - - 49,608
10,412 . - 10,412

{23,748 8 - {23,749)
1,158 - - 1,158
(364 . - (364)

37,066 - - 37,066
_ Stage 1 Stage2  Stage 3 Total

35,481 ) - 35491
18,247 - - 18,247
2488 $ . 2 459
(7 835) - (7.935)
1,167 - - 1,167
170 - - 70
49,609 - - 49,609

341 December 21 December

2020 2019

1.158 1,651

- (10

1,158 1,541

2020 2018

1,541 1,873

113 151

{496) (583)

1,158 1,541

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

1,551 - = 1,651
(503) - - {506)
113 - - 113
1,158 - - 1,158

ASA Bankad.d, Sarajevo




MNotes to the financial statements
far the year ended on 31 December 2020

(all amaunts are expressed in thousands of BAM, unless stated otherwisea)
21. DEBTINSTRUMENTS AT AMORTISED COST (CONTINUED)

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross carrying amount as at 1 January 2019 1,987 - - 1,987
Derecognition or proceeds from collection (excluding write off) (587) - - (587)
Interast (Mate 5) 151 - - 151
At 31 December 2019 1,551 - - 1.551
Changes in impairment are presenied below:
Stage 1 Stage 2  Stage 3 Total
Impairment as at 1 January 2020 10 - - 10
Release of reservation (Note 13) (10) - (10)
At 31 December 2020 4 u - .
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Impairment as at 1 January 2019 14 - - 14
Release in impairment due to changes in risk parameters (Note
13) 4] - 2 (4)
At 31 December 2013 10 - - 10
22. OTHER ASSETS AND RECEIVABLES, NET
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
Receivables from BH Podla based on the foreign exchange Contract 2,568 2.989
Recelvables from banks 2.645 1.058
Aecnuired tangible asssts 2,206 2729
Prepaid expenses 653 B53
Advance incoma tax 219 126
Receivables from government institutions 108 83
Inventories and other office supplies 75 76
Cash allocated to other banks - 2,591
Oiher 1.748 _ 1.870
10.713 12.265
Less: Impairment i1.386) (1.263)
9.327 11.002
Changes in acquired assets are presented below:
Gains from
Book value sale
January 1, 2019 2161 -
Sale / (purchase) of acquired real estate (699) 260
Collection of credit raceivables through the acquisition of real estale 1.267 =
Balance as of December 31, 2019 2.729 260
Sale / {purchase) of acquired real estate {370 252
Collection of credit recsivables througn the acquisition of real estate a1 -
Impairment of acquired rzal estate o (144} -
Balance as of December 31, 2020 2.296 252

ASA Banka d.d. Sargjavo -
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended on 31 December 2020
(all amounts are expressed in thousands of BAM, unless stafed otherwise)

22.  OTHER ASSETS AND RECEIVABLES, NET {CONTINUED)
Changes in Impairment are presenied below:

Balance at 1 January

The effect of the first-time adoption af the FRA Decision
Impaimnant (Mote 13)

Wirite off

Balance at 31 Decoember

2020 2019
1,263 1,167
209 .
88) 169

= (73}
1,386 1,263

ASA Zankad.d, Sarajevo
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended on 31 December 2020
(all amounts are expresssd in thousands of BAM, uniess stafed otherwise)

23. TANGIELE AND INTANGIELE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Assets under lease in accordance with IFRS 16 Leascs® are praserted below:

Met book value at 31 December 2020 (BAM 000)
Addition investment in assets with right of use (BANM 000)
Depreciation rete

Mumber of lease agreement

Period of right of use

24. DUE TO BANKS

Deposits:
Demand deposits
Fixed-term deposits

25, DUETO CUSTOMERS

Demand deposits
Retail:
In domestic currency
In foreign currencies

Corporate:
In domestic currency
In foreign currencies

Deposits from rion-profit organisations, cantonal govemment, municipalities
gic..

In domestic currency
In foreign currencies

Fixed-term deposits:
Retail:

In domestic currency
In foreign currencies

Comporate;

In domestic currency
In foreign currencies

Depaosits from non-profit organisalions, cantonal government, municipalities
efe..

Ir domestic currency
In fareign cumrancies

Property

2,083

10% - 48%

21

from 2 to 10 years

31 December 31 December
2020 2019
279 360
5,000 5,000
5,979 5,360
21 December 31 December
2020 2019
88,327 &7, 960
20,708 17,113
88,035 75,073
77,8980 43 155
12,138 4828
80128 - 47, 783
B3,845 S48 786
27,762 11,807
111,611 111,583
290,774 234,449
63,485 60,214
75,000 79,620
139,485 130,834
23,538 16,368
2875 o7
36,414 7,346
50,580 38,103
49,225 43 501
89 805 81,604
275,704 238,784
566,475 473,233

ASA Banka d.d. Sarajeva
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended on 31 December 2020
(all amounts are expressed in thousands of BAM, unless stated othenwiss)

25.  DUE TO CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED)

Interest rate during the year is presented below:

Lemand deposits in KM and foreign curmencies
Fixed-term deposits of legal entilies
Fixed-term deposits of private individuals

26. SUBORDIMATED DEBT

ASA Finance d.d. Samajevo (3,000 000 BAM, interest rate 5% p.a., maturity
11 August 2020 - bonds)

Accrued interest

27 LIAEILITIES FOR LEASE

Lang ferm lizbiitizs
Short term liabilities

Maturity analysis:
Within one year

In the second year
In the third year

Irs the fourth year
In the fifth year

2020 2019

0% - 0.10% 0.05% - 0.50%
[0.08)%: - 1.59% 0.05% - 4.50%
{0.15)% - 1,889, 0.05% - 6.40%
31 December 31 December
2020 2018

- 3,000

- 59

- 3,058

31 December 31 December
2020 2018

1,027 1,716

1,004 1,034

21 2,749

1,094 1,034

E63 874

47 453

80 337

a7 i |

2,121 2,749

Lease agreement are signed from 2 fc 10 years. The Bank used incremental borrowing rate fram 0.35% to 3.50% p.a

28. OTHER LIABILITIES

Lighilitizs for inactive accounts

Lizbilitizs for undistributed inflows

Card operaiions

Liabilities for suppliers

Liahilities for managed funds commissions (Note 31}
Other

ASA Banka d.d. Sargjevo

31 December 31 December
2020 2019
o8T G653
854 860
516 478
430 206
21 23
547 388
2,655 2,400
43




Motes to the financial statements
for the year ended on 31 December 2020

(all amounts are expressed in thousands of BAM, unless stated affierwise)

29, PROVISIONS

Provisions for commitmants and confingencies
Provisions for legal proceedings
Provisions for employes benefits

Commifmenis and contingencies

31 December 3 December
2020 2019

396 485

207 147

348 344

972 976

In the ordinary course of business, the Bank enters into credit related commitments which are recorded in off-balance
sheet accounts and prmarily irclude guarantees and undrawn commitments.

Unused approved loas
Ferformance guarantess
Payment guarantzes

Changses in gross carrying amount are presented below:

Gross carrying amount as at 1 January 2020

New financizl liabilities

Derecoghition or payment of liabilities (excluding write off)
Increzse in exposure under existing contracts

Transfer to Stage 1

Transfar to Stage 2

Transfer to Stage 3

At 31 December 2020

Gross carrying amount as at 1 January 2019

Maw financial ligkilities

Derecognition or payment of labilites (excluding write off)
Decrease in exposure under exisling coniracts

Transfer to Stage 1

Transfer to Stage 2

Transfer to Stage 3

At 31 Decembar 2015

ASA Banka d.d. Sa rajavd

3 December 31 December
2020 2019

22,086 20,536

15,554 13,473

2,373 2,481

40,113 36,470

Stage 1 Stage2 Staged  Total

36,273 194 3 36,470
26,318 46 1 20,366
(26,904) i1ag) (1} (27.,093)
1,357 10 3 1.370

20 (7] {3) -
(30} 30 - -
(2 - -
40,033 75 =) 40,113

Stage 1 Stage2  Stage 3 Total
28,060 274 1 28,335
29,011 112 - 29,123
(20,295) (200} - (20,495)
(480) (2) (N (453)
1 (1) - -
(11} 1 = =
. (3) - 3 -
36,273 154 3 36,470
&4




Notes tc the financial stataments

for the year ended on 31 December 2020

{all amounts are expressed in thousands of BAM. unfess stated otherwise)

29, PROVISIONS (CONTINUED)

Changes in impairment are presented below:

Impairments as at 1 January 2020

The effect of the first-time adeption of the FBA Decislon

Impairment (Mota 13)
Transfer to Staga 1
Transfer to Stage 2
Transfer to Stage 3

At 31 Decambear 2020

Impairmenis as at 1 January 2019
Impairment (Note 13)

Transfer to Stage <

Transfer to Stage 2

Transfer to Stage 3

At 31 Dacambear 2010

Changes in provisions are presented below:

Balance as of 1 January 2019
Increase in imagimmeant (Note 13)
Payments

Balance as of 31 Dacember 2019

The effect of the first-tme adoption of the FBA Decisian

Decrease in imparment (Note 13)

Balance as of 31 December 2020

Stage 1 Stage 2  Stage 3 Total
481 z 2 485

B3 24 2 108
(172) (24) (2) (188)
(n ! - -

- -
290 3 3 396

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
488 31 492

(5 (1) (1) )

(2] - 2 -

481 2 485

Commitments
Court and Employec

proceeding contingencies benefits Total
240 492 43 775
77} (7} 358 274
{18) - (27) (73}
147 485 344 876

= 109 - 109
80 {198 5  {(113)
227 396 348 ar2

Or 4 April 2019 Bank received Bark received Report from the Tax Authorites, denying usage of loszes of Moja banka
d.d.. and, consequently, stipulates additional tax obligation in amourt of 289 thousand KM (principal and penalty). On
24 April 2079, Bank has filed a complaint to the Tax Authorities, arguing above mentioned facts. Until the day of audit,
there were no significant changss in a complaint slalus filed to the Tax Authorities.

ASH Banka d.a. Sarajevo
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended on 31 December 2020
(all amounts are expressed in thousands of BAM, unless stated ofhenwise)

30. SHARE CAPITAL

Share capita' as of 31 December 2020 consists of 658,695 ordinary shares at nominal value of BAM 100.

31 December 2020 31 December 2024
% of % of
‘000 BAM ownership ‘000 BAM ownership
ASA Finance ¢.d. Sarajevo 35,653 54 54% 30,064 47 01 %
ZIF "prevent INVEST" d.d. Sarajevo 7,548 11.46% 7,548 11,46%
Validus d.d. VaraZdin — in bankruptey 1,780 2.70% 1.78D 2,70%
Almy d.o.o0. Zenica 1,403 2,13% 1,403 2,13%
Marmina Cago 1,279 1,04% 1,057 1,60%
Raiffeisen bank d.d. BIH 1,784 1.81% 1,314 2,00%
ZIF "PROF-PLUS" d.d. Szrajeva 1,010 1,53% 1,010 1,55%
E-MARDIN d.0.0. Sarajevo - - 4,810 7.30%
Other shareholders 15,663 2379% 15.984 24.27%
65,670 100,00% 65.870 100,00%

On June 30, 2020, the Bank's Assembly adopted & Decizion an the merger of Vakufeka banka d.d. Sarajevo to ASA
Bank d.d. Sarajevo. In accordance with the Decision of the Supervisory Board of July 30, 2020, the integration of
business activities and ene accounting of the Banks was defined as of September 1, 2020, Considering the objactive
circumstances out of the control of the Banks, on 23 December 2020, the Supervisory Board amended the
aforementioned Decision and set a new date for the integration of business activities started rom 1 March 2021

31. MANAGED FUNDS

The funds for which the Bank acts as commissioner for and of behalf of third party are net Bank's assets and therefore
are not the part of nandal statements, Analysls of managed funds is presentec as follows:

31 December 31 December
2020 2018
FPLACEMENTS
Corporats 8332 2,950
Retail 2,025 2,297
_ 11,357 12,247
SOURCES:
Zenica — Doboj Canton 0,358 8.808
Sarajevo Canton 1,705 1,957
Others 314 505
11,378 12,270
Current obligations due to Managed funds (Note 28) 21 23

In accordance with the signed commission agreements with the Govemment of Zenica-Doba) Canton znd the
Government of Sarajeve Canton, the Eank had placed 9,332 thausand KM of loans to legal entities and 2 025 thousand
KM to individuals, in order to invest in housing for third parties, employment and agricultural development. .

In accordance with the above agreements, the Bank was obliged fo place these funds to third partizs. The owners of
the: sources of funds bear the risk of collecting them.

ASA Banka d.d. Sargjeve 458




Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended on 31 Decamber 2020
{all amounts are expressad in thousa nds of BAM, unfess stated otherwise)

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In accordance with the requirements of the Interationzl Accounting Standard 24 “Related Party Dizclosuras” 4 related
party is a perscn or entily thal is related to the entity that is preparing its financial statements:

{a) A person or a close member of that person’'s family is related to a reporting entity if that parson:

(i) has contral or joint control of the reporting entity;

(i} has significant influence over the reporting entity: or

(iii) is & member of the key management personnel of the reporting enlily or of a parent of the reporting entity
(b} An entity is related to a reporting entity if any of the following conditions applies:

(i) Th2 entity 2nd the reporting entity are members of the same group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related tc the others),

(Iiy One ertity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associats or joint veniura of a member of a
group of which the ather entity is a member),

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

{iv) One entity is a joint venturz of a third entity and the cther entily is an associase of the third entity.

(v} The emity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benafit of employees of either the reporting entity cr an entity
‘elated to the reporting entity. If the reperting entity is itself such a plan, the spansoring employers are also related to
the reporting ertity.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a persan identified in ().

{vil} A person identified in {3){i) has significant influence over the entity or is & member of the key management
personnel of ne entity {cr of a parent of the entity).

{viii} The entity or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides <ey management personnel services to the
reporting entity or to the parent of the reparting entity.

As at 31 December 2020 and 20189 balance outstanding with related parties comprisec;

All transaction that are presented below are done by cornmercial and banking conditions:

31 December 2020 31 December 2018
Off-balance Off-balance
sheet sheet
Loans  exposure Total Loans __ exposure Total
Employees 3,251 a7 3,588 2688 338 3,026
Shareholders 12,362 £33 12,995 7.885 310 g,308
15,613 970 16,583 10,687 G483 11,335

Directors’ remuneration

The remuneration of directors ana other key management personnel during the vear endad 31 December 2020 may
be presented as follows:

2020 2019

Compensation for Chairman and mambers of the Eoard 433 427
Taxes and contributions and other compensations 246 243
679 670

ASA Barks d.d. Sarajevo 47
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for the year ended on 31 December 2020
(all amounts are expressed in thousands of BAM, unless stated otherwise)

33. RISK MANAGEMENT

aj Capital risk managements
The Bark's objectives when managing capital. which iz a broader concept than the 'equity’ on the face of balance
sheets, are:

*  Tocomply with the capital reguirermens set by the regulators of the barking markets;

* To safeguard the Bank's abllity 'o continue as a going concern so that it can confinue to provide returns far
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders:

* Tomaintain 2 strong capital base to support the development of its business,

The Bank expects to maintain its debt to capital ratin Solvency indicators were as follows:

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

Debt 574 579 454 401
Capital 62,545 £8.170
Net debt to capital ratio 9,19 7,11

Lebt is detined as liabilifies toward cliznts. other banks and financial institutions presented in detail in Notes 24, 25, 26
and 27. Cagital includes share capital and accumulated losses.

Regulztory capital of the Bank Includes core and supplementary capital.

Core capital of bank (totally equal to ordinary share capital) includes paid shares, premium on share, accumulated
retained earnings and other reserves formed from earn after tax based o0 decision of Bank Assembly, net revaluation
reserves by change of fair value of assets (accumulasted comprehensive income), impaired by amount of treasury
slocks, intangible assets and deferred tax sssets. Supplementary capital includes general impairment for credit risk,
calculated as 1.25% from amount of risk- weighted exposure, impaired by missing reserves for credit loss by regulatory
request. This provision was applied up to the 31 December 2018,

The prescrioed minimum capital rates are as follows:

« rate of regular core capital 6.75%

' rate of core capital 8%

* rate of ragulatory capital 12%

In addition to the regulatory minimum rates of adequacy, Bank also has 1o provide capital conservation buffer that reeds
to be in form of regular basis capital in amount of 2.5% of the total amount of risk exposure

The total weighted risk used to calculste capital adequacy includss:
* risk- waighted assets and crecit equivalents,

» positional, currency, commadity risk, and

« oparational risk.

One of the basic processes that the Bank implements in the context of strategic risk management is the internal capital
adeguacy assessment procass ["|CAAP"). The main objective of this process is to cetermine the positive level of capital
that is sufficient to cover all risks that the Bank is exposed to and that are assessed as material. |CAAP serves as an
interral capital adequacy assessment tool in relation to the risk profile of the Bank and the implementation of the Bank's
strategy appropriafe to maintaining an adequate level of intemal capital.

ASA Banka d.d. Sarajeva 48




Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended on 31 December 2020
(all amcunts are expressed in thousands of BAM, unless slated otherwise)

33. RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2020, the rates and levels of capital were as follows:

The rate of core capital 15.73%
The rate of regulatory capital 15.73%
The rate of core capital including adjusiments from Pillar 2 7.72%
The rate of cora capital including adjusiments from Pillar 2 10.29%
Tne rate of regulatory capital including adjustments from Pillar 2 13.72%
Table that is presented below shows structure of eapital and capital indicators at 31 December 2020 and 2014:
31 December 31 December
2020 2018
Regulatory capital 56,985 94,735
Core capital 56,005 54,735
Regular core capital 56,995 54,735
Paid-up equity instruments 55,870 65,870
Retained earnings {13,824) i10,154)
Cther comprehensive income — revaluation reservas 458 713
Other reserves 5,992 5,882
Deductions from regular core capital
intangible assets (1.314) {1,234)
deferred tax assets (95) {108)
Deductions from ragular core capital — migsing reserves . (6,344
Total regular core capital 56,985 54,735
Supplementary cora capital . .
Core capital 56,995 54,735
Supplementary capital B )
Subordinatsd debt - =
General value adjustmeant for credit risk - 3,870
Deductions from supplementary capital — missing reserves - (3,870)
Total regulatory capital 56,995 54,735
Tctal risk-weighled assets (unsudited) B 382 332 345,618
Rate of regular core capital 15.73% 15.84%

Capital adjustment plan

As of 31 December 2020, the ratio “tangible assstsicors capital® amountad to 16,68% (31 December 2019: 14,35%).
According to the Law on Banks, total bank's nvestments into tangible assets may not exceed 40% of the cors capital.

Bank is obliged to ensure and maintain financial leverage rate, as additional security and simple capital protection. in
minimum of 6%.

The bank's financial leverage raie is ratio of core capital and amaunt of total bark axposure an reporting date, expressed
as a percentage. Financial leverage ratio at 31 December 2020 amounts 1o 8.57% (31 December 2019: 9,51%).
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended on 31 December 2020
fall amounts are expressed in thousands of BAM, uniess stated otherwise)

33. RIBK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
b) Significant accounting policies

Details of the significant accounting polides and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of
measurement and ine basis on which income and expenses are recognized, in respect of each class of financial asset,
financial lizbiity and equity instrument are disclosed in Note 3 to the financial statements.

c) Categories of financial instruments

31 December 31 December
2020 2019
Financial assets
Loans and receivables: 5082 357 484,322
Cash and cash equivalents (including Obiigatory reservas with the
CBEH) 202 287 181,489
Loans to clients and recefvables, net 380,070 332,833
Financial assets af FVTPL 1,213 243
Financial assets at FWTOC| 27,065 48,609
Financial assets at amortised cost _ 1,168 1,541
621,794 535,715
Financial liabilities
At amorised cost:
Bommowings and llabilities to banks 5,878 5,360
Subordinated debt - 3,055
Due to customers 565,478 ] 473,233
572,457 481,652

d) Financial risk management objectives

The Bank’s Risk department provides services to the business, monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the
operations of the Bank through internal risk repors, which analyse exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. These
rigks include markat risk {including currency risk and fair value interest rate risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow
interest rate risk,

a) Market risk

The Bank's activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in fareign currency exchange rates and inlerest
rates (see below points fand g).

Market risk exposures are supplemented by sensitivity analysis. There hzs been ro change to the Bank's axposure 1o
market risks or the manner in which it manages and measures the risk.
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33. RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

f) Foreign currency risk management

The Bank undertakes ceriain transactions denominated in foreign cumencies, The carrying amourts of the Banke
foreign currency denominated monetary assets and mcnetary liabilities at the reporiing date are as follows:

BAM EUR UsD CHF Cther Total
Az at 31 December 2020
ASSETS
Cash and balances with other banks 119,616 17,703 4 ThA 1,485 893 144 453
Obligatory reserves with the CBEH 57,834 - - - - 57,834
Loans to customers, net 380,070 - - - - 380,070
Financial assets at FVTPL 1,213 - - - - 1,213
Financial asset at FWTOCI 37,066 - - - - 37,086
Debt instruments at amortised cost 1,158 - - - - 1,158
Other receivables 7,682 1,740 8 - - 8,327
Total 604,538 18,443 4,781 1,485 893 631,121
LIABILITIES
Due lo other banks and financial
institutions 5,979 - - - - 5,979
Amounts due to customers AFFTIT 181,730 4,783 1,485 723 £BE 478
Ciher financial liabilties 4,733 13 - - = 4,778
Total 388,518 181,743 4,763 1,485 723 577,233
As at 31 December 2019
Total monetary assets 316,643 222985 4,490 1,258 1,341 546,717
Total monetary liabilities 256,382 223.68T 4,499 1,258 995 456,801

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

Tha Bank is mainly exposed to EUR, USD and CHF. Since Convertible Mark (BAM) is pagged to EUR, the Bank is nct

exposed to risk of change of EUR exchange rate.

The following table details the Bank's sensitivity 1o a 10% increase and decrease in BAM against USD and CHF, 10%
is the sensilivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk intemally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency denomirated monetary items and adjusts their translation st the period end
for a 10% change in USD. A positive number below indicates an increase in profit where KM strengthens 10% against
USD. For a 10% weakening of KM againsi USD and CHF., there would be an equal and opposite impact on the profit,

and the balances below would be negative.

UsD Effect

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Profitfloss) -

ASA Barka d.d. Sarajeva
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31 December

31 December
2019
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33. RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
al Interest rate risk management

The Bank ie exposed to interest rate risk a3 the Bank places and borrows funds at both fixed and Moating interest rates.
The risk is managed by the Bank by maintaining an appropriate mix between fixad and floating rate borrowings.

The Bank's exposures to interest rates on financial assats and financial labilities arc detailed in the liquidity risk
management seciion of this note (see point i),

interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the axposure to interest rates for financial instruments
at the reporting period date. The analysis is prepared assuming the number of financial instruments outstanding at the
reporting period date was oulstanding for the whole year. A 200-basis point increase or decrease is used when raporting
inferest rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents management's assessment of the reasonab ¥
possible change in interes| rates.

If int=rest rates had been 200 basis points highelower and all cther variables were held constant, the Bank' net result
for the year ended 31 December 2020 would decrease ! increase by BAM 4,455 thousand (2013; BAM 643 thousand —
used S0-basis point as per cument methocology in 2019).

h) Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its conlractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the
Bank, The Bank has adopted a policy of only dealing with craditwarthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient collateral,
where appropriate, as a means of mitigzting the risk of inancial ‘'oss from defaults.

I'he Bank's exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties are continuously monitored and the aggregate value of
transactions concluded is spread amongst approved counterparties. Credit exposure is confrolled by counterpany limits
that are reviewed and approved by the risk management committes (RICD) on a monthly basis.

The Bank does not have any significant credit risk exposuare to any single counterparty or any company of counterparties
having similar characteristics. The Bank defines counterparties as having similar characteristics if they are related
erntities.

Exzepl slaled below in table, the carrying ameunt of financial asset presented in financial statements, decreased for
losses based on impairmants, represants the Bank's maximum oxposura to credit risk without taking acsount of the
value of any collateral obtained.
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33. RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

hj) Credit risk managemant {continued)

Total gross Individually Individual Collective Total net
camying Unimpaired impairment impairment  impairment earnying
amount assets assets allowance allowance amount
Ag of 31 December,
2020
Casn and balances with
other banks 144,534 39,107 105,527 - [181} 142 453
Obligatory resenses with
the CEEBH 57,834 57 B34 - - 57,634
Laans to customers and
receivables at
amaortised cost 407,779 JMT 404 062 (18,738) {8,974) 280,070
Financial assets at
FWTPL 1.213 1,213 - - - 1,213
Db instruments at
amortised cost 1,158 1,168 - - - 1,158
Financial assets at
FVTOCI 37,065 887 36179 . - 37,086
649,684 103,916 545,768 {18,735) {9,155) 621,794
As of 31 December,
2019
Cash and balances with
other barks 103,675 43,018 G0 BST - (173 103,658
Chligatory reservas with
the CREH 47 831 47 831 - - 47 831
Leans to custemers and
recaivables at
amaortised cost 374,989 Ta0 374,239 (8 036) {34,130) 332 833
Financial assels at
FVTPL 243 243 - - - 243
Debt instruments at
amortised cost 1,551 - 1,551 - (10 1.541
Financal a=sets af
FWTOCI 45 609 - B51 48,758 - - 43 609
577,908 92,703 455,205 {8,038) {34,157) 535715
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33. RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
h}  Creditrisk management (continued)

Credit exposure and collateral

CredIt risk exposure

ASA Banka d.d. Sarajevo

Loan Fair value of
Met commitments / collateral
exposurs Guarantees
As at 31 December 2020
Cash and balances with other banks 144 453 - -
Obligatory reserves with the C2EH 57,834 - -
Loans to customers and receivacles at amortised cost 380,070 43107 4045 586
Financial assets at FWTPL 1,213 - -
Financial assets at =\ TOCI 37,065 - -
Debt instruments at amorised cosat 1,153 =
621,794 40,107 406,598
Az at 31 December 2018
Casn and balances with other banks 103,658 - -
Cibligatory reserves with the CBEH 47 831 - -
Loans to customers and receivables at amortised cost 332 533 36 469 380,263
Financial assets al FWTPL 243 - -
Financial assets at FVTOC] 43 609 - -
Debt irstruments at amorisad cost 1,541 - -
535,715 38,469 380,263
Fair value of the collaterals
31 December 31 December
2020 o 2019
Real estate BT A4 363,386
Movable properies 8,837 g 842
Deposits 10,221 7,035
Tatal 406,688 380,263
Arrears
Total
grass 91 to
loans to Upto 30 31to90 120 181 to Over 270
citizens Mot due days days days 270 days days
31 December 2020
Corporate 111,313 100,882 5428 280 120 135 4,447
Fetall 296 486 262 040 14 877 1664 182 - _17.394
Tatal 407,778 362, 841 20,108 1,854 302 135 22,341
31 December 2019
Carporate 208 178 250,818 4270 737 2675 136 37,520
Retail 78,823 66,055 4 BB 257 134 213 7.501
Total 374,998 316,873 8,933 1,014 2,808 349 45,021
54




——

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended on 31 December 2020
(all amounts are expressad in thousands of BAM, unless stated othenwise)

33. RIBK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
[} Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Management Board, which has built an appropriate
liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Bank's shoi, medium and leng-term funding and
liguidity management requirements. The Bank manages liquidity risk by maintaining acequate reserves and other
financing sources, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash fiows and matching the maturity profiles of
financial assets and liabilitias.

Liguidity and interest risk fables
The following table details the Bank's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial asset. The tabe nas

been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual maturities of the financial assets including interast that will be
esrned on those assets.

Maturity for financia’ assets

Weighted
average Less From 3
effective than 1 103 months 1t05 5+
interest rate menth  months  to 1 year years years Total
31 December 2020
Mor- interest bearing - 108,360 - - 147 0 108,515
Wariable interast rate instruments 3.66% a7,288 24 3582 B4 353 143,208 71.791 430,999
Fixed interest rate instruments 3.40% 18,887 7843 24888 34480 14855 120562
224 B35 32,004 139,341 177,842 86,656 660,478
31 December 2019
Non- intsrest bearing . 112,584 . 145 2 9 113,038
Variabe interest rate instruments 413% 45051 15147  EB117 138794 47801 335010
Fixed interest rate instruments 305% 9343 2233 56520 46731 3412 115,845

167,884 17,380 144,783 185525 51,322 566,894

Thz following table details the Bank's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liahilities. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilifies based on the earliest date an which the
Bank can be required to oay. The table includes both inferest and principal cash flows.

Matunty for inanzial fabiliies

Weighted

average From 3

effective Less than 1to 3 months to 1t0 5 5+

Interest rata 1 month months 1year  years years Total
31 December 2020
Non-interest bearing ; 97.333 278 3428 1,440 826 103,314
Variablz interest rate instruments 0.09%, 200,000 484 3 565 3,706 - 207754
Flred interest rate nstruments 1.50% 22880 21254 79,827 151,206 2133 277,300
320,222 22,016 86,820 156,361 2,059 588378

31 December 2019
Nen-interas: baaring = 10,004 230 1,314 2388  1.081 15,017
Variable Interest rate instruments 0,10% 195,257 827 4386 5790 8) 206,300
Fixed interest rate Instruments 1,48% 38582 4980 B17BE 145549 1532 277221

243,843 10,847 87,448 153,727 2,673 498538

The Bank expects o meet its other ubligations from operating cash flows and proceeds of maturing financial asset,
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Notes ta the financial statements
for the year ended on 31 December 2020
{all amounis are expressed in thousands of BAM, unless slated otherwise)

34, FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (CONTINUED)

34.2 Fair value of the Bank's financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value
on a recurring basis (but fair value disclosures are required)

Excepl as detailed in the following table, the Management consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabllities recognised in the financial statements approximatz their fair values.

o 31 December 2020 - 31 December 2019
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount  Fair value

Financial assats

Loans and receivablas: 380070 401,734 332 833 350174
- Loans to customers and receivables at
amortised cost 1188 482 1,541 1.987
= Dl instrurments at amorlised cost
Financial lizhifities
At amortised cost: 572 457 589,194 478,583 450 485
- Due to customers, other banks and
financial institutions - - 3,059 2913

Fair value hierarchy as of 31 December 2020
Leval 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Loans and receivables
- Loans 1o customers and receivables at
amortised cost - 401,734 - 401,734
- Debt instruments at amartised cost - 1,482 z 1,482
- 403,218 - 403,216

Financial llabilitias
At amorfised cost:
- Due 1o customers, other banks and

financial liabilities - 569,184 - 569,194

- 569,194 - 569,154

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities included in the above categaries of Level 2 were dstermined according
to generally accepted models of assessment based on an analysis of discounted cash flows, the discount rate as most
important input data, which reflects the credit risk of countarparties. As the discount rate used in the weighted average
interest rate on the state level, published by CBBH separately for legal entities and individuals.
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for the year ended on 31 December 2020
(all amounts are expressed in thousands of BAM, unless stated otherwise)

35. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

On June 30, 2020, the Bank's Assembly adopted a Decision on the merger of Vakufska banka d.d. Sarajevo to ASA
Bank d.d. Sarajevo. In accordance with the Decision of the Supervisory Board of July 30, 2020, the integration of
business activities and one accounting of the Banks is defined to start from September 1, 2020. Given the objective
circumstances out of the control of the Banks, as of 23 December 2020, the Supervisory Board amended the
aforementioned Decision and set a new date for the integration of business activities starting from 1 March 2021. As of
the date of these financial statements, the Bank does not have reliable and relevant information on whether the
integration will actually take place on the new projected date.

In order to expand the existing office premises, and taking into account the business reorganization plan and the
forthcoming merger of Vakufska banka d.d. Sarajevo, on February 1, 2021, the Bank signed a Real Estate Purchase
Agreement with ASA Nekretnine BH d.o.0. Sarajevo in total amount of KM 9 million.

36. APPROVAL OF fHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial stat § were approved by the Board on 5 February 2_021. K—“
Sarhicflustafié /4 yA“Fr;%a e?faékf avor Tomic
Chairman of tHe Board cting Memibef of the Board mber of the Board
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